Public Document Pack

MEETING OF HARLOW COUNCIL
7.30 pm on Thursday 31 October 2019
In the Council Chamber - Civic Centre

AGENDA
1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Declarations of Interest
Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any items on the
agenda.

3.

Minutes (Pages 3 - 7)
To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 19 September 2019.

4.

Communications from the Chair

5.

Presentation of Award
The Chair of the Council will present the Harlow Architecture and Design
Environment Award to Oakwood Pond volunteers.

6.

Petitions from the Public

7.

Questions from the Public

8.

Questions from Councillors

9.

Motions from Councillors

10.

References from Cabinet and Committees

11.

Reports from Officers
a)

Review of Polling Districts and Places 2019 (Pages 8 - 39)

b)

Appointment to Committees, Sub Committees and Panels
To confirm the appointment of Councillor Tony Edwards as Chair
of the Scrutiny Committee in place of Councillor Bob Davis.

12.

Minutes of Cabinet and Committee Meetings
To note the following Cabinet and Committee minutes:

13.

a)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 10 September 2019 of Licensing
Committee (Pages 40 - 41)

b)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 11 September 2019 of Audit &
Standards Committee (Pages 42 - 45)

c)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 12 September 2019 of Cabinet
(Pages 46 - 51)

d)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 18 September 2019 of
Development Management Committee (Pages 52 - 54)

e)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 15 October 2019 of Scrutiny
Committee (to follow)

f)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 16 October 2019 of Development
Management Committee (to follow)

g)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 17 October 2019 of Cabinet
(to follow)

Matters of Urgent Business
Such other business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be
received as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances to be
specified in the minutes.

Public Document Pack

Agenda Item 3

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL
HELD ON
19 September 2019

7.30 - 8.05 pm

PRESENT
COUNCILLORS

OFFICERS

Clive Souter (Chair)
Maggie Hulcoop (Vice-Chair)

Brian Keane, Chief Executive
Simon Freeman, Head of
Finance and Deputy to the
Chief Executive
Simon Hill, Head of
Governance
Adam Rees, Governance
Support Officer

Simon Carter
Joel Charles
Jean Clark
Mike Danvers
Jodi Dunne
Bob Davis
Tony Durcan
Tony Edwards
Michael Garnett
Eugenie Harvey
Mark Ingall
15.

Shannon Jezzard
Frances Mason
Stefan Mullard
Russell Perrin
Danny Purton
John Strachan
Emma Toal
Chris Vince
Phil Waite
Nancy Watson

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors David Carter, Nick
Churchill, Tony Hall, Michael Hardware, Andrew Johnson, Eddie Johnson,
Shona Johnson, Sue Livings, Lanie Shears and Mark Wilkinson.

16.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None.

17.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2019 are
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

18.

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CHAIR
The Chair highlighted the various events he had attended since the previous
meeting of Full Council. He reminded Councillors of the upcoming Civic
Service.

3

19.

PRESENTATION OF CIVIC AWARD
The Vice Chair presented the following Civic Award in recognition of their
commitment and contribution to the local community:
Jackie Sully

20.

PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
None.

21.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
The questions, together with the answers, are appended to the minutes.

22.

QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS
None.

23.

MOTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS
a)

Stop the Knock
Proposed by Councillor Emma Toal (seconded by Councillor
Shannon Jezzard):
“This Council recognises that the most vulnerable people in our
society are at the greatest risk when they get into debt. This Council
believes it has a duty to help those who fall into debt and to do this it
will commit to the six steps set out in the Money Advice Trust’s ‘Stop
the Knock’ campaign with a particular focus on those individuals
receiving support through the Local Council Tax Support Scheme.”
RESOLVED that the motion was carried.

b)

Volunteers in the Town
Proposed by Councillor Frances Mason (seconded by Councillor
Eugenie Harvey):
“In July this year, it was announced that for the eleventh consecutive
year, Parndon Wood Nature Reserve has been awarded the
prestigious Green Flag status. It was also announced that the Town
Park has been also been accredited for the fourth consecutive year.
The Green Flag Award scheme recognises and rewards well
managed parks and green spaces, setting the benchmark standard
for the management of recreational outdoor spaces across the United
Kingdom and around the world.

4

A Green Flag Award a sign to the public that the space boasts the
highest possible environmental standards, is beautifully maintained
and has good visitor facilities.
It is an internationally recognised scheme and demands the highest
standards of environmental management.
This Council recognises the vital role that volunteers play in the
maintenance of Parndon Wood Reserve and the Town Park,
particularly in caring for bushes and flowers and other important
aspects of landscape management.
This Council thanks these volunteers for their contributions and
congratulates them on the part they have played in our on-going
recognition through the Green Flag scheme.
Further this Council recognises the vital role that volunteers play
across the Town in facilities such as the Playhouse, the Museum,
Pets’ Corner, Stort Valley Meadows, Harlow Conservation, Town
Park, Wildspace, Pardon Wood Nature Reserve and
Harlow Greenteam volunteers and expresses gratitude on behalf of
all residents.”
RESOLVED that the motion was carried.
24.

REFERENCES FROM CABINET AND COMMITTEES
a)

Referral from Licensing Committee - Institute of Licensing
Guidance on the Suitability of Applicants and Licence Holders in
the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Trades
Proposed by Councillor Danny Purton (seconded by Councillor
Frances Mason) it was:
RESOLVED that:
A The Institute of Licensing (IOL) guidance, as set out in
Appendix A to the report, be adopted to replace the Harlow
Council Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Criminal
Convictions Policy, as set out in Appendix B to the report,
with effect from 1 October 2019.
B Authority be delegated to the Environment and Licensing
Manager in consultation with the Chair of the Licensing
Committee to adopt such revisions to the guidance as may
be published from time to time.

b)

Referral from Cabinet - Annual Treasury Management Report
2018/19

5

Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Mark
Ingall) it was:
RESOLVED that:
A The annual Treasury Management Report for 2018/19, as
set out in Appendix A to the original report, including that
the Council operated within the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement during 2018/19, be noted and
approved.
25.

REPORTS FROM OFFICERS
None.

26.

27.

MINUTES OF CABINET AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
a)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 12 June 2019 of Audit and
Standards Committee

b)

Minutes of meeting Wednesday, 3 July 2019 of Development
Management Committee

c)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 9 July 2019 of Licensing
Committee

d)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 16 July 2019 of Scrutiny
Committee

e)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 18 July 2019 of Cabinet

f)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 3 September 2019 of Scrutiny
Committee

MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS
None.

CHAIR OF THE COUNCIL

6

Minute Item 21
Item 7 refers

Full Council – 19 September 2019
Questions from the Public
1 Mr Hugh Hoad to Councillor Mark Ingall (Leader of the Council):
Why are the Police and Harlow Council not enforcing the Public Space Protection
Order in the Town Centre effective from 5 August 2019?
Reply from Councillor Mark Ingall (Leader of the Council):
Following the introduction of the Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) there was a
two week period to allow for education of the public regarding the Order and for the
public notices to be erected. Since then the Order has been enforced by the Police
and the Community Safety Team. A large amount of alcohol has been confiscated
and many cyclists have been instructed to dismount from their cycles.
In addition there have been several arrests for drunk and disorderly behaviour and
public order offences. Eight community protection warnings and two fixed penalty
notices have been issued.
It should be noted that with a PSPO the matter only becomes an offence if the
perpetrator fails to comply with the request from the Police or Community Safety
Officer.
2 Mr Hugh Hoad to Councillor Mark Ingall (Leader of the Council):
Is the Council seeking more funding so further accommodation like Bromley
Cottages can be built for the homeless of Harlow?
Reply from Councillor Mark Ingall (Leader of the Council):
The Council continues to seek additional funding in supporting its existing projects
and new building/renovating projects to support and prevent people from sleeping on
the streets.
As part of the Government’s spending review announced in September 2019,
additional funding will be made available to reduce homelessness and rough
sleeping in 2020/21. More information should be known in December 2019,
including on how the funding will be distributed. This funding is intended to deliver
the Government’s aim to end rough sleeping by 2027 and to halve the number of
rough sleepers by 2022.

7

Agenda Item 11a

REPORT TO:

FULL COUNCIL

DATE:

31 OCTOBER 2019

TITLE:

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND PLACES
2019

LEAD OFFICER:

BRIAN KEANE, CHIEF EXECUTIVE/ACTING
RETURNING OFFICER (01279) 446000

CONTRIBUTING OFFICER:

SIMON HILL, HEAD OF GOVERNANCE
(01279) 446099

RECOMMENDED that:
A

The proposals for the Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations in
Harlow, as set out in Appendix A to the report, be approved with the changes as
follows:
i) St Stephen’s Church is being designated as the polling place for Bush
Fair West, replacing William Martin School.
ii) Church Langley Community Centre being designated as the polling
place for Church Langley East, except for Parliamentary Elections and
referenda where Henry Moore Primary School will continue to be used.
iii) The creation of a new polling district for Newhall (designated HC) Old
Harlow South, using Newhall Primary Academy as the polling place.

B

The Electoral Registration Officer reflect alterations required as a result of the
review in the revised Electoral Register, to be published in accordance with the
statutory timetable.

C

The Acting Returning Officer be authorised to identify and designate alternative
polling places should a requirement arise of necessity prior to the next
scheduled review.

BACKGROUND
1.

Under the Electoral Administration Act 2006 there is a statutory requirement for
the Council to review its polling places every four years. To comply with this, the
Council must finalise its review by 1 December 2019.

2.

The Council began a review on 1 July 2019 which was split into two stages. The
first stage gave the public the opportunity to make initial representations until 31
July 2019. Following consideration of these representations the (Acting)
Returning Officer published their proposed changes on 22 August 2019. The

8

public were invited to make representations on these proposals by 20
September 2019.
3.

A notice of the review was published on the Council’s website. Copies were also
sent to all local Councillors, County Councillors, the local MP, all current polling
places, social media and local notice boards. The responses are attached as
Appendix B to the report, but are also summarised below:
a) Bush Fair West – William Martin School
i)

Closing school causes unnecessary disruption and is difficult to
justify given the low turnout at recent elections;

ii)

Imminent loss of car parking opposite school; and

iii)

Other suitable venues within area.

b) Church Langley East – Henry Moore Primary School
i)

Unnecessary to close school due to disruptive impact on
education and costs to families given low turnout; and

ii)

Church Langley Community Centre is a much bigger venue and is
more suitable with better parking.

c) Great Parndon East – Jerounds Primary School
i)

Unnecessary to close school due to disruptive impact on
education and costs to families given low turnout.

4.

The Council is required by law to divide its area into polling districts for the
purpose of Parliamentary Elections and to designate polling places for those
districts. The current list of polling districts and places is attached as Appendix C
to the report

5.

Consideration must be given to the law and the Electoral Commission’s
Guidance. This means that the Council must:
a) Seek to ensure that all electors in the constituency have such
reasonable facilities for voting as practicable in the circumstances;
b) Seek to ensure that so far as is reasonable and practicable, the polling
places they are responsible for are accessible to all electors, including
those who are disabled, and when considering the designation of a
polling place, must have regard to the accessibility needs of disabled
persons;
c) The polling place must be within the polling district (and therefore ward)
unless special circumstances make it desirable to designate an area

9

wholly or partly outside the district (for example, if no accessible
parking can be identified in the district).
6.

The law makes provision for the (Acting) Returning Officer to use school
premises for the purpose of taking a poll free of charge. In addition to this,
schools are often used because they are centrally located, well known venues,
with good disabled access and parking.

ISSUES/PROPOSALS
7.

The (Acting) Returning Officer considered the following factors, in addition to
those set out in paragraph 5 of this report:
a) Central or convenient location for the maximum number of electors in
the ward;
b) Physical accessibility, especially for those with mobility difficulties;
c) Guaranteed availability;
d) Consistent availability;
e) Venue is well known to electors;
f) Cost;
g) Condition of building and facilities; and
h) Impartial and ethical use of the building/location.

8.

The (Acting) Returning Officer’s comments on representations received and any
subsequent recommendations are below.
a) Bush Fair West – William Martin School
i)

It is noted that the current polling place is unsuitable given the
high level of Special Educational and Disability (SEND) children
that attend.

ii)

The loss of nearby parking also will make the current polling place
less suitable.

iii)

St Stephen’s Church is more accessible to voters, with better
access and facilities. It is therefore proposed that the polling place
is changed to St Stephen’s Church.

10

b) Church Langley East – Henry Moore Primary School
i)

Representations about the suitability of Henry Moore Primary
School have been made during previous reviews and it was noted
that use of Henry Moore Primary School had declined since its
use as polling place began in 2008. The turnout during the 2019
Local Elections (excluding postal votes) was 18.5 per cent.

ii)

The school is unable to open up its staff car park until after 6pm
as it is required for staff. The school playground cannot be used
due to Police concerns about behaviour when it was previously
used.

iii)

Church Langley Community Centre is in a good location within the
Ward, with good parking, and is big enough for the whole Ward
for lower turnout elections.

iv)

However for higher turnout polls, such as Parliamentary Elections,
there are concerns about queuing at the Church Langley
Community Centre. It is therefore proposed that Church Langley
Community Centre is the new polling place for Church Langley
East, except for Parliamentary Elections/referenda where Henry
Moore Primary School be used. When the school is used, the
Council will designate a disabled parking area outside of the
School’s gates and will suspend parking restrictions next to the
School.

c) Great Parndon East – Jerounds Primary School
i)

9.

The current polling place is centrally located and easily
accessible. Alternatives are not centrally located, so although it is
noted that there is disruption to students, it is not proposed to
make any changes.

The (Acting) Returning Officer has also made the following representation not
arising from comments received during the consultation. The representations are
attached as Appendix D to the report.
a) Old Harlow South
i)

To reflect the increasing size of Old Harlow West due to the
Newhall development, it is necessary to create a new polling
district. It is proposed that the new district will be called Old
Harlow South and will comprise the Newhall development. The
Newhall Primary Academy would be used as the polling place,
subject to the agreement of the academy trust.

10. All other polling districts and places received no representations in respect of
them and are considered appropriate.

11

11. Consultation on the (Acting) Returning Officer’s Representation began on 22
August 2019 and ended on 20 September 2019. The responses are attached as
Appendix D to the report and are summarised below:
a) Bush Fair West
i)

The nursery at William Martin School can be isolated from the rest
of the school, or the school can earmark an INSET day.

ii)

Parking will not be lost due to Bushey Croft development.

b) Church Langley West
i)

Supportive of change, but unclear why Henry Moore Primary
School will be used for Parliamentary Elections/referenda.

ii)

Disagree with proposed changes. There have been no changes
since the previous review. The school can use INSET days and
the school is centrally located within the polling district. Parking
issues are only anecdotal and it would be more difficult, and
discriminatory, for the majority of the electorate to travel to Church
Langley Community Centre. It will be confusing to have different
arrangements for different elections.

c) Old Harlow South
i)

Unnecessary and inappropriate to use Newhall Primary Academy
as it creates disruption to parents and can pose a safeguarding
risk.

ii)

There are other locations nearby to the school which should be
considered.

iii)

There is a need to create a new polling district.

iv)

Support the use of the school as a polling place.

12. The (Acting) Returning Officer has considered the issues raised as part of the
second phase of consultation and considers that the proposed changes set out
in Appendix A to the report remain appropriate.
13. The changes to the Electoral Register will take effect from 1 December 2019
unless a Parliamentary General Election is called. The Electoral Registration
Officer will make the changes accordingly.
Changes to a Polling Place Before the Next Statutory Review
14. If a polling station becomes unavailable the (Acting) Returning Officer will first
consider whether it is feasible to use a different room or area within a designated
polling place.

12

15. If a polling place is or will become unavailable and sufficient time permits, a
review will take place and a decision on a replacement polling place will be
made by Full Council.
16. However, in an urgent situation where it is not feasible to make alternative
arrangements within a designated polling place, such as the building was
destroyed by fire or unsafe, the Council’s Scheme of Delegation to Officers
would apply whereby the Chief Executive, or another designated Officer in their
absence, would identify and designate an alternative polling place taking into
account paragraphs 5 and 7 above.

IMPLICATIONS
Environment and Planning (Includes Sustainability)
None specific.
Author: Andrew Bramidge, Head of Environment and Planning
Finance (Includes ICT, and Property and Facilities)
There may be some additional costs incurred where buildings other than schools are
used. These costs can be met from within existing budgets.
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance and Deputy to the Chief Executive
Housing
None specific.
Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing
Community Wellbeing (Includes Equalities and Social Inclusion)
Appropriate bodies have been consulted over access needs.
Author: Jane Greer, Head of Community Wellbeing
Governance (Includes HR)
As contained within the report.
Author: Simon Hill, Head of Governance

Appendices
Appendix A – (Acting) Returning Officer’s Representation
Appendix B – Responses Received from Stage 1 Consultation
Appendix C – Current List of Polling Districts
Appendix D – Responses Received from Stage 2 Consultation
Background Papers
None.
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used
INSET – In-service Training Day

13

SEND – Special Educational and Disability

14

Appendix A

15

Appendix B

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

Appendix C
Harlow Council Polling Stations
Ward

Polling District

Register

Polling Station

Address

Address 1

Postcode

Total Electorate

Bush Fair East
Bush Fair West

AA
AB

New Life Christian Fellowship
William Martin Junior School

Purford Green
Tawneys Road

CM18 6HP
CM18 6PW

3,044
2,592

Church Langley

Church Langley East
Church Langley West

BA
BB

Henry Moore Primary School
Church Langley Community Centre

Kiln Lane
Church Langley Way

CM17 9LW
CM17 9TG

3,737
2,664

Great Parndon

Great Parndon East
Great Parndon West

CA
CB

Jerounds Primary School
Katherines Common Room

Pyenest Road
Katherines Hatch

CM19 4PH
CM19 5NJ

2,831
2,159

Harlow Common East
Harlow Common West

DA
DB

Potter Street Baptist Church
Pear Tree Mead Primary Academy

Church Lane
Pear Tree Mead

CM17 9AW
CM18 7BY

2,857
2,694

EA
EB
EC

Pemberley Academy
Trinity U.R. Church
Little Parndon School

Hodings Road
Hare Street
Park Mead

CM20 1NW
CM19 4AY
CM20 1PU

2,281
1,768
2,249

Mark Hall North
Mark Hall South

FA
FB

Harlow Museum
Harefield Church

Muskham Road
Burgoyne Hatch

CM20 2LF
Momples Road CM20 3EH

1,926
3,358

Netteswell

GA

David Livingstone URC

Church Hall

Maddox Road

Bush Fair

Harlow Common

Little Parndon & Hare Street East
Little Parndon & Hare Street Little Parndon & Hare Street South
Little Parndon & Hare Street West
Mark Hall

Brookside
Potter Street

27

CM20 3RL

5,576

CM20 3QA

Only used for Parliamentary
Elections

CM17 0JR
CM17 0AT

941
5,722

CM18 7BL
CM18 7RQ

624
4,286

Netteswell
Netteswell

GA

Freshwaters Primary Academy

Freshwaters

Old Harlow

Old Harlow East
Old Harlow West

HA
HB

St Mary's Church Centre
The ABC Centre

Churchgate Street
Garden Terrace Road

Staple Tye

Staple Tye East
Staple Tye West

JA
JB

Griffin Suite
Longwood Primary Academy

Latton Bush Centre
Paringdon Road

Sumners & Kingsmoor East
Sumners & Kingsmoor West

KA
KB

Kingsmoor Christian Centre
Xperience Centre

Parndon Wood Road
Broadley Road

CM19 4SE
CM19 5RD

3,598
1,686

Toddbrook North
Toddbrook East
Toddbrook West

LA
LB
LC

Harlow Playhouse
St Mark's West Essex Catholic School
Salvation Army Centre

Playhouse Square
Tripton Road
Tendring Road

CM20 1LS
CM18 6AA
CM18 6RN

1,349
836
3,371

Sumners & Kingsmoor

Toddbrook

School Lane

Southern Way

Appendix D
Alison Hodgson
Sent:
Subject:

21 August 2019 18:01
RE: Polling station review - Recommendation

I am confused by the suggestion we move the Bush Fair Polling station from William Martin School to St
Stephens. The school, together with the Council, made arrangements such that in the 2019 election only the
nursery was used for polling- as the rest of the school could be isolated from that building the rest of the
school would have remained open if the day had not already been earmarked as an INSET day.
Also the parking opposite the school will not be lost due to the Bushey Croft Development. Plans show the
provision will remain and be enhanced, it certainly has more parking than St Stephen's Church.
Thanks

From: Alison Hodgson <alison.rayman@harlow.gov.uk>
Date: 21 August 2019 at 15:39:41 BST
Subject: RE: Polling station review- Reccommendation
Dear Councillor
I am emailing you as one of the ward councillors in Bush Fair,Church Langley and Old Harlow. Please find attached
our recommendations for changes to the polling stations in your ward as part of the polling station review.
These will be published and open for Public comments until 20 September 2019.
Regards

Alison Hodgson

Electoral Services Assistant Manager (Part-Time)
Electoral Services
Latton Bush Centre
Southern Way
Harlow
CM18 7BL

1

28

Alison Hodgson
Sent:
Subject:

02 September 2019 10:47
Use of Henry Moore Primary as a polling station

Categories:

In Progress

Dear sir/madam,
I am supportive of the acting officer's proposal to stop the use of Henry Moore Primary School as a polling
location for all but Parliamentary and Referendum votes.
As a trustee of the Harlow Inspirational Learning Trust, I am reassured that this proposal will provide much
less disruption for the pupils within our Trust.
However, I would ask you to consider using Church Langley Community Centre as a polling station for
Parliamentary and Referendum votes as well, or- if this is not possible - to please explain why Henry
Moore is a more suitable polling station for this category of elections.
Yours faithfully,

Harlow Inspirational Leaning Trust

Get Outlook for Android

1

29

Alison Hodgson
Sent:
Subject:

20 September 2019 08:55
Review of Polling stations

Please find attached a response to the (Acting) Returning Officers recommendations
following the responses to the review of polling stations in Harlow. It is sent on behalf of
the three Church Langley ward councilors.

1

30

Reviews of polling districts, polling places and polling stations

(Acting) Returning Officer's Representation
Henry Moore Primary School
Current polling station is unsuitable, primarily because there is no parking
and most people go to the polling station in their car, either going to or
coming from work. It also causes disruption to the school.
Church Langley Community Centre is in a good location within the Ward, is
big enough and has plenty of parking available.

Response
This representation fails on a number of important grounds:
• there have been no changes to the circumstances affecting the role of
the polling station since the last review to warrant such a drastic
upheaval as closure;
• insufficient weight is given to accessibility as required in sections 4.2
and 4,6 of the Polling Station Review - Guidance issued by the Electoral
Commission;
• and the suggestion of having different polling stations for different
elections is confusing. What arrangements do you have for referenda or
the Police and Crime Commissioner elections?
Henry Moore school has been used a polling station ever since it opened nearly
twenty years ago and is now recognised and accepted as such by the
electorate. There have been no changes to the population size since the last
review nor to the highways infrastructure making access more difficult. No
evidence is provided to support such a recommendation now. Its location and
normal ease of access it is appropriate for use as a polling station within the
guidelines.
Some parents wonder why the school closes for an additional day when it can
be allocated for training or similar purposes. Adequate notice is available for
elections.
There is parking available if the school chose to make it so. Residents popping
into to the school to vote will require only a short stay so there would be rapid
turnover. The school is closed to pupils so there is no risk to children. Henry

31

Moore is unique in that other schools in Harlow used as polling stations keep
their gates open and manage to provide parking without difficulty.
The use of schools as polling stations is covered in section 5.22 of the
Guidance. Schools are public funded public buildings usually situated centrally
within a community and its location generally known by that community. For
this reason traditionally schools have been used not just in Harlow but across
the country. Nearly half of the 23 polling stations in Harlow are in schools, so
Henry Moore is far from unusual.
It can only be anecdotal to say that most people go to vote by car as no such
study has ever been undertaken and there is no evidence of any great change
in voter habits over the past twelve months. There are plenty of retired and
non-employed residents who walk to the polling station during the day and
evening.
In terms of access and equality it seems unfair to discriminate against the
majority of voters by closing their polling station. The west polling district
(Henry Moore) served 3,737 voters (May 2018), whereas the East (Community
Centre) district served only 2,593 voters. Equity would suggest that the least
number of voters should be inconvenienced by closing their polling station and
using a more central and more convenient polling station in the middle of the
ward.
It is likely more voters would drive to a remote polling station, located in a far
corner of the ward, than walk to their local one - an unnecessarily
environmentally unfriendly result. Something seemingly overlooked in this
Representation is the existing congestion at the Church Langley School,
adjacent to the Community Centre, at school starting and closing times. This is
exacerbated by residents popping into the store for shopping on their way to
work. The distance and congestion would deter many people from attending a
single polling station stuck in an isolated part of the estate. Most voters in
Church Langley (West) live within a quarter mile of Henry Moore School
whereas it is over a mile to the community centre.
The current layout of the school as a polling station is in breach of the Equality
Act 2010, including section 149 Public Sector Equality Duty, by discriminating
against people with disabilities, a protected characteristic under Section 4 of
the Act. Section 149 is breeched by failing to eliminate discrimination and
advancing equality of opportunity. There is a perfectly usable room for a
polling station adjacent to the main entrance to the school, which is only yards
from the main entrance. However, the layout provided forces voters to take a
hundred yard walk to a second hall at the far end of the school building. It is
therefore necessary for a member of the polling staff to wait at the locked

32

gates and telephone through for the presiding officer to walk to the gate with a
voting paper in order for a disabled voter to exercise their democratic right.
Having two systems of voting for different elections will be confusing to voters,
especially with annual local elections. It is inevitable that voters in a general
election would make their way to the Community Centre, only to be told they
have to go somewhere else. Most people will make the effort, but some will
not, but voters from the west division will wonder at the sense of their local
authority. There is no record of any other council operating a dual polling
station voting arrangement.
Schools and parents have plenty of time to prepare for elections. They are
always held the first Thursday in May, except for European Elections, now no
longer an issue, and general elections every few years.
It is not much of an ask that citizens can exercise their democratic freedom
and rights achieved at the sacrifice of millions in two world wars, and the
campaign by Suffragettes to achieve female emancipation.
Nothing has changed since the last review to warrant the closure of the polling
station, access issues are not properly reviewed and the suggestion of different
polling stations for different elections is not practical.

33

Alison Hodgson
Sent:
Subject:

07 September 2019 12:23
Polling Station query

Dear Harlow Council,
I write with reference to the proposed polling station site to be located at Newhall Primary School.
Although thankfully I do not have children in this school and it will not effect me personally I am opposed to it.
Primarily because I have schooled my children at Henry Moore School and it has caused unnecessary disruption to
the school, the children & parents so much so that the school is trying to cease their school being used as a polling
station any longer.
However I am thankful that a new polling station site is being sought closer to where I live and preferably one that
can walk to.

1

Please may I ask why other locations other than schools aren't being researched?
For example we have New Ground Cafe practically next door to this school and it is a focal point of our community,
could this not be considered an option?
Last year I witnessed a lovely atmosphere at The Queens Head Public House in Churchgate Street in Old Harlow. The
polling station was inside the pub and people voted and stayed to have a drink resulting in great community spirit.
I have no links to the Cafe and am unsure even if they would be prepared/ permitted to have the polling station at
the cafe due to extended opening hours,however I have cc'd them in incase this could be researched. Apologies for
direct approach.

Please see below picture posted on Harlow Council's Facebook page of Polling Day in May this year at The Queens
Head PH on Churchgate Street.

Kind Regards

1

34

Alison Hodgson
Sent:
Subject:

07 September 2019 09:59
Proposed Polling Station @ Newhall Primary Acaedmy

Dear Planning Dept,
As a parent of a child who attends Newhall Primary Academy,I strongly oppose your proposal of opening at polling
station at the school as this will ultimately be putting our children at risk, however minuscule the risk and despite
any safeguarding measures you put in place it's still a risk non the less!
If the school stays open during polling days do you plan CRB check every person(s) entering the school?
alike many other parents I have spoken with i would not feel comfortable sending my child to school on this day!
If the school decides close on these days to you plan to reimburse us parents the cost of childcare for those days?
Surely there has be to a more suitable place within the Newhall area for a polling station ensuring we are protecting
our child against even minimal risks.
I look forward to your response.
Regards

Sent from my iPhone

1

35

Alison Hodgson
Sent:
To:

OS September 2019 22:51
Registration

Subject:

Polling statiions

To whom it may concern,
I have just come across your Facebook post regarding the polling station review.
I have a child who has attended Henry Moore since year 2 and is now in year 4.
The days of elections are a huge problem for us trying to find childcare........ especially as I work
within a school that does not close for polling as they use a church hall instead.........
Therefore, seeing the reasons you wish to move Henry Moore polling station to Church Langley
community centre is great.......you are correct in saying it causes a disruption to the school and all
the school children who are legally obligated to attend........ therefore, moving it to church Langley
community centre is great news........
However, below this box I then see the plan is to create a Newhall polling station which fair
enough there probably is a need.......however, the plan there is to close the Newhall school and
disrupt that school instead...... (which my son attends by the way so the great news above just
becomes really rubbish news as I'm yet again stuck with no childcare).
If one of the reasons is to not use Henry Moore due to the disruption of the school........ why is it
then ok to disrupt another school instead?
There is absolutely no logic in that decision at all.
The polling days cause massive problems for childcare for any parent as the schools cannot even
run an emergency childcare club to help those parents who cannot get time off as they cannot use
the site.
Working in a school myself I don't get holiday entitlement........ But I will certainly not be flavour of
the month if I keep having to tell my work that I have no-one to have my kids especially as the
beings that run parliament seem to keep running polling days just for fun ....
If it was just one day a year...... that's bad enough but this year with the potential of another
vote.......
That will be 3 school learning days missed in one year........ please can you explain how it is
acceptable for children to loose those three days when other schools do not close and they get
the extra 3 days of education they are entitled to?
Kind regards,

Get Outlook for Android

1

36

Alison Hodgson
Sent:
To:
Subject:

07 September 2019 08:32
Registration
Newhall polling district

Dear Sirs
As a Newhall resident,I fully support the proposal to create a district for the Newhall area and use of the local
school as a polling station. The current station is too far away and results in people being unable to get there and
vote.
Kind regards

Sent from my iPhone

1

37

Alison Hodgson
Sent:
To:
Subject:

07 September 2019 10:25
Registration
Newhall polling station

I just wanted to say I support using the Newhall school as a polling station,there is an active member of our new hall
community who has told everyone this is the opposition email address so you will be receiving an unbalanced
amount of negative feedback.

1

38

Alison Hodgson
Sent:
To:

Subject:

24 August 2019 15:35
Alison Hodgson
RE: Polling station review - Reccommendation

That sounds very sensible. Is Churchgate Street still in the Church Hall.

Date: 21 August 2019 at 15:39:41 BST
Subject: RE: Polling station review- Reccommendation
Dear Councillor
I am emailing you as one of the ward councillors in Bush Fair, Church Langley and Old Ha rlow. Please find attached
our recommendations for cha nges to the polling stations in your ward as part ofthe polling station review.
These will be published and open for Public comments until 20 September 2019.
Regards

Alison Hodgson
Electoral Services Assistant Manager (Part-Time)
Electoral Services
La tton Bush Centre
Southern Way
Harlow
CM18 7BL

1

39

Agenda Item 12a

MINUTES OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE
HELD ON
10 September 2019

7.30 - 7.58 pm

PRESENT
Committee Members
Councillor Frances Mason (Chair)
Councillor Shannon Jezzard (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Nick Churchill
Councillor Michael Garnett
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop
Councillor Andrew Johnson
Councillor Lanie Shears
Councillor Nancy Watson
Officers
Chris Bennett, Principal Environmental Health Officer
Hannah Criddle, Governance Support Officer
Michael Pitt, Environment and Licensing Manager
Denise Westwood, Assistant FCilex
11.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Tony Hall and John
Strachan.

12.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None.

13.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 9 July 2019
are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

14.

MATTERS ARISING
A question was raised on whether substitutes were permitted on the
Licensing Committee. It was clarified at the meeting that substitutes were
not permitted. This was noted for future meetings.

15.

WRITTEN QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS
None.

40

16.

COMMITTEE WORK PLAN
It was agreed by the Committee that the report on Electronic Payment of
Fares in Hackney Carriage Vehicles would be moved forward to the
meeting on 19 November 2019. This would also include electronic
payment in Private Hire Vehicles. A report on the use of CCTV in licensed
vehicles would be brought to the Committee on 21 January 2020.
RESOLVED that the Work Plan was noted.

17.

INSTITUTE OF LICENSING GUIDANCE ON THE SUITABILITY OF
APPLICANTS AND LICENCE HOLDERS IN THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE
AND PRIVATE HIRE TRADES
The Committee received a report on the Institute of Licensing Guidance on
the suitability of applicants and licence holders in the Hackney Carriage
and Private Hire trades. Michael Pitt proposed an amendment to
Recommendation A for the policy to be adopted as of 1 October 2019. The
amendment was approved by the Committee.
RESOLVED that the Committee recommends to Full Council that:
A The Institute of Licensing (IOL) guidance, as set out in Appendix
A, be adopted to replace the Harlow Council Taxi and Private
Hire Vehicle Licensing Criminal Convictions Policy, as set out in
Appendix B, with effect from 1 October 2019.
B Authority be delegated to the Environment and Licensing
Manager in consultation with the Chair of Licensing Committee
to adopt such revisions to the guidance as may be published
from time to time.

18.

REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
None.

19.

MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS
None.

CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE

41

Agenda Item 12b

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE
HELD ON
11 September 2019

7.30 - 9.10 pm

PRESENT
Committee Members
Councillor Stefan Mullard (Chair)
Councillor Shannon Jezzard (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Simon Carter
Councillor Jean Clark
Councillor Jodi Dunne
Councillor Michael Hardware
Councillor Eddie Johnson
Councillor Frances Mason
Councillor Chris Vince
Officers
Simon Freeman, Head of Finance and Deputy to the Chief Executive
Sarah Marsh, Internal Audit Manager
Adam Rees, Governance Support Officer
Also Present
Councillor Tony Edwards
Lisa Clampin, Engagement Lead, BDO
Francesca Palmer, Audit Manager, BDO
14.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
None.

15.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillors Carter and Vince both declared a pecuniary interest as
remunerated Council appointed Directors of HTS (Property and
Environment) Ltd.

16.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 12 June 2019
are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

42

17.

MATTERS ARISING

a)

Minute 9 - Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19
The Chair noted that the Head of Governance had been expected to
attend the meeting on 31 July 2019. As this meeting was moved to 11
September, the Head of Governance was unable to attend due to Annual
Leave. A note had been sent to the Chair explaining that the course was
now being tested by users. The roll out of the training would be timed so it
did not clash the ESAB Staff Safeguarding Survey taking place in
September. The Committee asked for the date the training would be
completed and asked that the Head of Governance attends the next
meeting.
Councillor Mason questioned whether the Council had completed its
Section 11 audit. It was agreed that Councillors Mullard and Mason would
meet with Christine Howard, Youth and Citizenship Manager, to clarify
whether the Council had submitted its audit.

18.

WRITTEN QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS
None.

19.

NON CONTENTIOUS BUSINESS
None.

20.

COMMITTEE WORK PLAN
The Committee received its current work plan.
RESOLVED that the work plan is noted.

21.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2018/19
The Chair said that this item would be considered as part of Item 11
(Audited Annual Accounts 2018/19).

22.

MANAGEMENT LETTER OF REPRESENTATIONS 2018/19
The Chair said that this item would be considered as part of Item 11
(Audited Annual Accounts 2018/19).

23.

AUDIT RESULTS REPORT 2018/19 (ISA 260)
The Committee received a report and the external auditor’s findings on
their audit of the Council’s financial statements and arrangements to
secure value for money.
RESOLVED that the Committee:

43

A Noted the Value for Money assessment of the Council’s use of
resources as contained within the report (attached as Appendix
A to the report) from the Council’s appointed Auditor.
24.

AUDITED ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2018/19
The Committee received the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts, together with
the Annual Governance Statement.
RESOLVED that:
A Upon consideration of the Auditor’s Results Report earlier in the
agenda the Committee notes the 2018/19 Statement of
Accounts (attached as Appendix A to the report on the
supplementary agendas) and delegated final approval of the
Statement to the Head of Finance and Deputy to the Chief
Executive, in consultation with the Chair of the Audit and
Standards Committee.
B The Committee reviewed and approved the Council’s Annual
Governance Statement (attached as Appendix A to the report on
the supplementary agendas) for 2018/19.
C The approval of the Management Letter of Representation be
delegated to the Head of Finance and Deputy to the Chief
Executive, in consultation with the Chair of the Audit and
Standards Committee.

25.

INDEPENDENT MEMBER FOR THE AUDIT AND STANDARDS
COMMITTEE
The Committee considered a report on the recommendation of the Audit
and Standards Working Party to proceed with the appointment of an
independent person to the Committee.
RESOLVED that:
A The recommendation of the Working Party to appoint an
independent person to the Committee is approved.
B The Independent Member Recruitment Pack (attached as
Appendix A to the report), be approved.
C The interview panel would consist of Councillors Carter, Clark
and Mullard.

26.

REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
None.

44

27.

MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS
None.

CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE

45

Agenda Item 12c

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
HELD ON
12 September 2019

7.30 - 8.11 pm

PRESENT
Committee Members
Councillor Mark Ingall, Leader of the Council
Councillor Eugenie Harvey, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Community
and Wellbeing
Councillor Mike Danvers, Portfolio Holder for Resources
Councillor Tony Durcan, Portfolio Holder for Economic Growth
Councillor Danny Purton, Portfolio Holder for Environment and Member
Champion for Highways and Infrastructure
Councillor Lanie Shears, Portfolio Holder for Governance, Equality and Diversity
Councillor John Strachan, Portfolio Holder for Regeneration and Member
Champion for IT
Additional Attendees
Councillor Tony Edwards
Other Councillors
Councillor Simon Carter
Councillor Joel Charles
Councillor Mike Garnett
Councillor Tony Hall
Councillor Andrew Johnson

39.

Officers
Brian Keane, Chief Executive
Andrew Bramidge, Head of
Environment and Planning
Hannah Criddle, Governance Support
Officer
Simon Freeman, Head of Finance and
Deputy to the Chief Executive
Jane Greer, Head of Community
Wellbeing
Andrew Murray, Head of Housing

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies of absence were received from Councillor Mark Wilkinson.

40.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Eugenie Harvey declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda
item 15 (Disposal of Land Adjacent to the Old Harlow Medical Centre) as
she lives in Old Harlow.
Councillors Michael Garnett and Joel Charles both declared a nonpecuniary interest in agenda item 15 (Disposal of Land Adjacent to the Old
Harlow Medical Centre) as Ward Councillors for Old Harlow.
Councillor Simon Carter declared a pecuniary interest in agenda item 14
(Building Cleaning Contract) as a remunerated Councillor Director of HTS
(Property and Environment) Ltd and confirmed he would leave the
Chamber when the item was discussed.

46

41.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2019
are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Leader.

42.

MATTERS ARISING
None.

43.

WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
None.

44.

WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS
None.

45.

PETITIONS
None.

46.

FORWARD PLAN
RESOLVED that the Forward Plan is noted.

47.

RECENT DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE LEADER, DEPUTY OR
PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S)
None.

48.

JOINT FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORT, QUARTER 1 2019/20
Cabinet received a report which set out both the Council’s financial
performance, along with its performance against its own performance
indicators for the first quarter of 2019/20.
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Mark
Ingall) it was:
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
A Noted the projected outturn position set out in sections three
and four of Appendix A to the report for the first quarter (April –
June) of 2019/20 as follow:
i) An adverse variation on controllable budgets of £215,000
representing 0.4 per cent of the gross General Fund
Budget.

47

ii) A total projected overspend of £46,000 representing 0.08 per
cent of the gross General Fund Budget.
iii) The Council performance on or above target for 47 out of 49
(96 per cent) of its quarterly performance indicators.
49.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT, QUARTER 1 FINANCE REPORT
2019/20
Cabinet received a report which provided an update on the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) for the first quarter on 2018/29 and asked that
Cabinet variances in the HRA budget and the forecast of the HRA and
Major Repairs Reserve.
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Mark
Ingall) it was:
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
A Noted:

50.

i)

A favourable variation against the approved Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) operational/controllable budget of
£140,000 representing (-)0.02 per cent of the gross HRA
budget.

ii)

An unfavourable non-operational variance of £3,200,000
representing 0.57 per cent of gross HRA budget which
includes adjustments to housing capital programme financing
as a result of the re-alignment of budgets and changes to
proposed funding which increases the anticipated direct
revenue contribution required in 2019/20.

CAPITAL PROGRAMMES, QUARTER 1 FINANCE REPORT 2019/20
Cabinet received a report which provided an update on the Council’s
Housing and Non Housing Capital Programmes and to approve a revised
Housing Capital Programme for 2019/20.
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Mark
Ingall) it was:
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
A Noted the progress in the delivery of the Council’s Housing and
Non Housing Capital Programmes as at Quarter 1 (30 June
2019) as follows:
i) Housing Capital Programme – forecast outturn £23,743,000
(original estimate £24,044,000).

48

ii) Non Housing Capital Programme – forecast outturn
£15,618,000 (original estimate £11,156,000). The outturn
includes a new budget for work to Enterprise Zone Plot H
“Modus” approved by Cabinet on 20 June 2019 with a
£7.2 million budget as set out in Annex A14 to the report.
B Approved the revised Housing Capital Programme for 2019/20
outlined in paragraph 19 to the report.
51.

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2018/19
Cabinet received a report in the Council’s treasury management functions
in 2018/19.
Proposed by Councillor Mike Danvers (seconded by Councillor Mark
Ingall) it was:
RESOLVED that Cabinet recommended to Full Council:
A The annual Treasury Management Report for 2018/19, as set
out in Appendix A to the report, including that the Council
operated within the Treasury Management Strategy Statement
during 2018/19, be noted and approved.

52.

BUILDING CLEANING CONTRACT
Councillor Simon Carter left the meeting.
Cabinet received a report to enter into a contract for building cleaning
services for a minimum period of 36 months with effect from 1 October
2019.
Proposed by Councillor John Strachan (seconded by Councillor Lanie
Shears) it was:
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
A Approved, subject to formal contract, a building cleaning
contract with HTS (Property & Environment) Ltd (HTS) for a
period of three years with an option, at the sole discretion of the
Council, to break the contract at the end of year one by giving
no less than four months’ notice subject to agreement of the
terms and conditions and;
i) The conclusion of mandatory formal consultation with the
transferee’s existing employees and confirmation that
HTS will provide pension protection which is the same as,
broadly comparable or better than those they had the
right to acquire prior to the transfer and;

49

ii) Clarification on the final cost of the new services taking into
account the matters above.
B Granted delegated authority to the Chief Executive in
consultation with the Leader of the Council to make the
necessary legal and financial arrangements to award the
contract.
53.

DISPOSAL OF LAND ADJACENT TO THE OLD HARLOW MEDICAL
CENTRE
Councillor Simon Carter returned to the meeting.
Cabinet received a report for the disposal of land adjacent to the Old
Harlow Medical Centre.
Proposed by Councillor John Strachan (seconded by Councillor Tony
Durcan) it was:
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
A Declared the land adjacent to the Old Harlow Medical Centre as
surplus to requirements.
B Approved plans to dispose of the freehold interest in the subject
land for use as part of the existing Medical Centre.
C Delegated to the Head of Finance and Deputy to the Chief
Executive, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for
Regeneration, the authority to negotiate and finalise the terms of
the disposal and (subject to being satisfied that it would be for
the best consideration reasonably obtainable) thereafter procure
the legal completion of the sale documentation.

54.

COMMUNICATIONS FROM COMMITTEES/WORKING
GROUPS/PARTIES AND PANELS

55.

REFERRAL FROM RELIGIOUS DIVERSITY WORKING PARTY UPDATE
Cabinet received an update from the Religious Diversity Working Party to
note the progress of the Working Party.
Proposed by Councillor Lanie Shears (seconded by Councillor Mark Ingall)
it was:
RESOLVED that Cabinet:
A Noted the progress of the Working Party so far.

50

56.

MINUTES OF PANELS/WORKING GROUPS
RESOLVED that the minutes of the following meetings are noted.

a)

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 2 July 2019 of Harlow Local Highways Panel

b)

Minutes of meeting Thursday, 15 August 2019 of Cabinet Overview
Working Group

57.

MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS
None.

LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

51

Agenda Item 12d

MINUTES OF THE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
HELD ON
18 September 2019

7.30 - 7.50 pm

PRESENT
Committee Members
Councillor Phil Waite (Chair)
Councillor Nancy Watson (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Jean Clark
Councillor Bob Davis
Councillor Michael Garnett
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop
Councillor Stefan Mullard
Councillor Clive Souter
Officers
Hannah Criddle, Governance Support Officer
Amanda Julian, Legal Service Manager
Mark Philpott, Development Manager
Tanusha Waters, Planning and Building Control Manager
23.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Michael Hardware
and Sue Livings.

24.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Michael Garnett declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda
item 7 (22 Sheering Road) as Old Harlow Ward Councillor and Harlow
North County Councillor.

25.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2019
are agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair subject to
the following amendments:
A Minute 18 (4 Burnett Park – HW/HSE/18/00555) to read –
RESOLVED that planning permission is GRANTED subject to
the Conditions and Informative Clauses as detailed in the report.
B Minute 19 (5 Upper Hook – HW/HSE/19/00102) to read RESOLVED that planning permission is GRANTED subject to
the Conditions and Informative Clauses as detailed in the report.

52

C Minute 20 (74 Chippingfield – HW/HSE/19/00023) to readRESOLVED that planning permission is GRANTED subject to
the Conditions and Informative Clauses as detailed in the report
in addition to the following:
A An additional condition to restrict building work times to 8am
to 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am to 1pm Saturday and no
building work to take place on Sunday’s or Bank Holidays.
26.

MATTERS ARISING
None.

27.

WRITTEN QUESTIONS
None.

28.

PROCEDURE FOR CONSIDERATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS
RESOLVED that the procedure for the conduct of the meeting is
noted.

29.

HW/HSE/19/00207: 22 SHEERING ROAD
The Committee received a report and application (HW/HSE/19/00207) on
the planning permission for a rear extension of an existing garage and
conversion of the roof space above the garage to form a games room.
Presentations were heard from one objector and the agent for the
applicant.
Councillor Michael Garnett (seconded by Councillor Jean Clark) proposed
an additional condition to require that any future applications to change the
purpose of the room from a games room is brought back to the
Committee. The amendment was carried.
RESOLVED that planning permission is GRANTED subject to the
Conditions and Informative Clauses as detailed in the report and the
following additional condition:
A The development hereby permitted shall be used as a games room
as shown on plan 14/051/A/003 A (received 1 August 2019) and for
no other purpose. The development shall not be sold, transferred,
leased or otherwise disposed of as an independent residential unit
without first obtaining planning permission from the Local Planning
Authority.
REASON: In the interest of neighbouring amenity and in order to
enable the local planning authority to give consideration to any
residential use of the property other than as a single dwelling unit,

53

and to ensure compliance with the terms of Policy BE1 of the
Adopted Replacement Harlow Local Plan (2006).
30.

REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES
None.

31.

MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS
None.
CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE

54

